
AGENDA
BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
City Hall Forum – 7:00 p.m.

Monday, August 3, 2015

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS

a. Proclamation declaring August 4, 2015 as National Night Out (Zibolski)

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Resolution authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow a single-family attached dwelling
in C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 911 East Grand
Avenue (Christensen) Plan Commission recommendation for approval 6-0

b. Resolution authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow the sale of alcoholic beverages
in C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 901 Bayliss Avenue
(DBA Dave’s Bait and Tackle) (Christensen) Plan Commission recommendation for
approval 6-0

c. Resolution authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor seating area and
outdoor sales, possession, & consumption of alcohol in the CBD-1, Central Business
District – Core, for the property located at 430 E. Grand Avenue (DBA Zen Sushi & Grill)
(Christensen) Plan Commission recommendation for approval 6-0

5. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

6. CONSENT AGENDA

All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate
discussion of these items unless a Council member so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the General Order of
Business and considered at this point on the agenda.

a. Approval of the Minutes of the regular meeting of July 20, 2015 (Stottler)

b. Application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow outdoor seating area and outdoor sales,
possession, & consumption of alcohol in a PUD, Planned Unit Development District for
property located at 2900 Milwaukee Road (DBA Noodles and Company) (Christensen)
Refer to Plan Commission

c. Application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification of the
property located at 2460 Milwaukee Road from C-1, Office District and M-2, General
Manufacturing District to PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District (Christensen)
Refer to Plan Commission



7. ORDINANCES

a. Proposed Ordinance to amend Sections 30.17(1)(b)2, (b)3, (b)6 and (b)7a of the Code of
General Ordinances of the City of Beloit pertaining to Electronically Variable-Message
Signs (Christensen) 2nd reading

b. Proposed Ordinance to Repeal and Recreate Section 1.10 of the Code of General
Ordinances for the City of Beloit pertaining to Emergency Management (Liggett)
2nd reading

8. APPOINTMENTS – none

9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS

10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION - none

11. REPORTS FROM BOARDS AND CITY OFFICERS

a. Resolution approving the 2014 Wastewater Utility Wisconsin DNR Compliance
Maintenance Annual Report (Mathos)

b. Resolution approving and authorizing City Manager to enter into a Development
Agreement with Chambers IV, LLC regarding relocation of public utilities on the property
located at 2250 W. Hart (Christensen)

12. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled
individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please contact the City Clerk's
Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

Dated: July 29, 2015
Lorena Rae Stottler
City Clerk
City of Beloit
www.beloitwi.gov

You can watch this meeting live on Charter PEG digital channel 992. Meetings are
rebroadcast during the week of the Council meeting on Tuesday at 1:00 p.m.;

Thursday at 8:30 a.m.; and Friday at 1:00 p.m.

http://www.beloitwi.gov/


WHEREAS, The National Association of Town Watch (NATW) is sponsoring a unique
nationwide crime, drug and violence prevention program on August 4, 2015 entitled "National
Night Out," and

WHEREAS, the "32nd Annual National Night Out" provides a unique opportunity for
the City of Beloit to join forces with thousands of other communities across the country in
promoting cooperative, police-community crime prevention efforts; and

WHEREAS, the Beloit Police Department, Beloit Area Crime Stoppers and the Beloit
Fire Department play a vital role in assisting our community through joint crime, drug and
violence prevention efforts in Beloit, Wisconsin and are supporting "National Night Out" locally;
and

WHEREAS, it is essential that all citizens of Beloit be aware of the importance of crime
prevention programs and the impact that their participation can have on reducing crime, drugs
and violence in Beloit; and

WHEREAS, police-community partnerships, neighborhood safety, awareness and
cooperation are important themes of the "National Night Out" program.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT OF THE CITY OF
BELOIT does hereby proclaim Tuesday, August 4, 2015 as "NATIONAL NIGHT OUT" in
Beloit, and encourages residents to acknowledge the event with their neighbors by hosting block
parties, cookouts, youth programs and other such activities that strengthen and promote
neighborhood spirit and police-community partnerships.

Presented this 3rd day of August, 2015.

Charles M. Haynes President
Beloit City Council

ATTEST:

____________________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW A SINGLE-FAMILY ATTACHED

DWELLING IN A C-2, NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, FOR THE PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 911 EAST GRAND AVENUE.

WHEREAS, the application of Michelle Crossley, for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a single-
family attached dwelling in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 911 East
Grand Avenue, having been considered by the City Council of the City of Beloit, Wisconsin at a public
hearing held for that purpose and due notice of said hearing having been given by publication as appears by
the Proof of Publication on file in the office of the City Clerk.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock
County, Wisconsin does hereby grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow a single-family attached dwelling in
a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 911 East Grand Avenue, having been
considered by the City Council of the City of Beloit, for the following described premises:

Being part of Lots 14, 15, and 16, Block 20 of the Original Plat and commencing at the Southeast
corridor of Lot 16, then Westerly 43 feet, then Northerly 150.35 feet, then easterly 10 feet, then
northerly 16.5 feet, then easterly 33 feet, then Southerly 166.85 feet more or less to point of
beginning.

As a condition of granting the Conditional Use Permit, the City Council does hereby stipulate the
following conditions and restrictions upon the Conditional Use, which are hereby deemed necessary for the
public interest:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes a single-family attached dwelling in a C-2,
Neighborhood Commercial District.

2. The applicant must obtain all necessary building permits for the improvements that will be
required to convert the second story into a residence.

3. The applicant must apply for and obtain a Certificate of Occupancy before moving into the
residence.

4. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the
Plan Commission and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Planning and
Building Services Director may approve minor changes administratively.

Adopted this 3rd day of August, 2015.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Charles M. Haynes, Council President

ATTEST:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Conditional Use Permit Application for property located at 911 East Grand Avenue

Date: August 3, 2015

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Michelle Crossley has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a single-family attached dwelling in C-2,
Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 911 East Grand Avenue. The applicant is seeking
permission to convert the upstairs of the building at the subject property into a residence.

Key Issues:
 Single-Family Attached Dwellings are allowed as conditional uses in a C-2 District. The applicant has proposed

allowing a residence on the second floor of the building on the subject property.
o The applicant has stated the intention to reside in (or eventually rent out) this dwelling.

 The applicant recently purchased the building and has opened a dog grooming business on the first floor.
 The second floor is not currently set up as a living space. The applicant will be making the appropriate

improvements in order to meet all requirements for residential uses in the Building Code.
 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on July 22, 2015, and voted unanimously (6-0) to recommend approval

of the Conditional Use Permit, subject to the other four conditions recommended by Planning staff.

Conformance to Strategic Plan:
 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and action on the proposed Resolution.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Resolution and Staff Report to the Plan Commission



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: July 22, 2015 Agenda Item: 4 File Number: CU-2015-06

Applicant: Michelle Crossley Owner: Michelle Crossley Location: 911 East Grand Avenue

Existing Zoning: C-2, Neighborhood
Commercial District

Existing Land Use: Retail Parcel Size: .1599 Acre

Request Overview/Background Information:
Michelle Crossley has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow a single-family attached dwelling in
a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 911 East Grand Avenue. The applicant is seeking
permission to convert the upstairs of the building at the subject property into a residence.

Key Issues:
 Single-Family Attached Dwellings are allowed as conditional uses in a C-2 District. The applicant has proposed

allowing a residence on the second floor of the building on the subject property.
o The applicant intends to reside in (or eventually rent out) this dwelling.

 The applicant recently purchased the building and has opened a dog grooming business on the first floor.
 The second floor is not currently set up as a living space. The applicant will be making the appropriate

improvements in order to meet all requirements for residential uses in the Building Code.
 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed this application and have submitted the following comments or

concerns:
o Engineering Department – Adequate off-street parking must be available for the upper floor housing

unit.
 A small parking lot behind the house will provide adequate parking for both the tenant of the

housing unit and customers of the business.
 The attached Public Notice was sent to fourteen (14) nearby property owners.

o Planning staff received two calls from neighbors declaring their support for approval of the CUP.
 Findings of Fact

o Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare;

 Conversion of the second floor into a residence will not be detrimental to or endanger the public
health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare.

o Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate
vicinity for purposes already permitted;

 The conditional use will not injure the use and enjoyment of nearby properties. The property is
adjacent to similar uses including both residential and commercial uses. The addition of a second
story residence will not have a negative impact on other properties in the neighborhood.

o Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood
of the subject property;

 The conditional use will not diminish or impair property values in the neighborhood. The applicant
has already made a considerable investment by opening a business. A responsible business
owner concurrently living and working in the same building incentivizes property maintenance and
upkeep. In addition, the new business and potential owner-occupied residence will be
economically beneficial for the neighborhood.

o Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development and
improvement of the surrounding property;

 The surrounding area is already developed.
o Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar or

otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that it will
cause a depreciation in property values;

 Not Applicable.
o Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to serve

the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use;
 The applicant will be installing the appropriate facilities in the second story in order to provide a

functional living space.



o Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and
 Not Applicable.

o Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.
 The conditional use will comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:

The Comprehensive Plan recommends Neighborhood Commercial uses for the subject parcel. The dog grooming
business located on the first floor is consistent with this use. Though residential uses are not explicitly listed under
Neighborhood Commercial category, compact development is a central theme throughout the Comprehensive Plan
document and the applicants request to utilize unused space is consistent with this objective.

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – The second story residence will increase the density of the area and
will allow the applicant to live near her business. In addition, living within a close proximity to the amenities and
services in the downtown area reduces dependency on driving.

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a single-family
attached dwelling in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 911 East Grand Avenue, based
on the above Findings of Fact and subject to the following conditions:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes a single-family attached dwelling in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial
District.

2. The applicant must obtain all necessary building permits for the improvements that will be required to convert the
second story into a residence.

3. The applicant must apply for and obtain a Certificate of Occupancy before moving into the residence.
4. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan Commission

and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Planning and Building Services Director may
approve minor changes administratively.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
N/A

Attachments:
Zoning and Location Map, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List, Public Comments.









July 8, 2015

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC

To Whom It May Concern:

Michelle Crossley has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a single-family attached
dwelling in C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District. The permit would allow the applicant to convert the
upstairs of the building into a residence in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located
at:

911 East Grand Avenue.

Single-family attached dwellings are a conditional use in the C-2 District. The following public hearings will be
held regarding this proposed Conditional Use Permit:

City Plan Commission: Wednesday, July 22, 2015, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the matter can be
heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street.

City Council: Monday, August 3, 2015, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the matter can be heard in The
Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street.

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND THESE HEARINGS.

We are interested in your opinion.

Anyone bringing handouts to the Plan Commission meeting must bring ten (10) copies and submit them to the
Recording Secretary before the meeting begins. Staff is unable to leave the meeting area to make copies.

For additional information, please contact Alex Morganroth in the Planning Division at (608) 364-6708 or
morganrotha@beloitwi.gov. Comments will be accepted via telephone, email, and U.S. Mail.



GEORGE PANTUSO

318 HARRISON AVE

BELOIT, WI 53511

TLC PROPERTIES INC

5101 HWY 51 SOUTH

JANESVILLE, WI 53546

NATALIA KHARITONOVA

47 PORCHESTER TERRACE

LONDON UK W23TS

WILLIAM & DIANNE ZAWADZKI

9998 TYBOW TRL

ROSCOE, IL 61073

JUAN PAGAN

3509 CORBRIDGE LN

ROCKFORD, IL 61107

RONALD & LILY DICKINSON

3709 OAK LANE DR

BELOIT, WI 535111937

KHOOM PROPERTIES LLC

3655 BEE LN

BELOIT, WI 53511

MARVIN MILNER/EDWARD LAUGHLIN
LLC

P O BOX 1161

BELOIT, WI 535121161

MARY BOTTOMS

417 PARK AVE

BELOIT, WI 53511

WILLIAM & DIANNE ZAWADZKI

9998 TYBOW TRL

ROSCOE, IL 61073

JOHN E & MARY L DUMMER

11229 S CTY RD K

BELOIT, WI 53511

KENNETH PAULSON

749 PHILHOWER RD

BELOIT, WI 53511

KENNETH PAULSON

749 PHILHOWER RD

BELOIT, WI 53511

J ANTHONY GROVER

430 HARRISON AVE APT 302

BELOIT, WI 53511



Public Comments

1. Call received by Alex Morganroth on 7/9/15 by Phil and Dianne Zawadzki at 918 E Grand Avenue.
They fully support approval of the Condition Use Permit.

2. Call received by Alex Morganroth on 7/9/15 by Mary Bottoms at 417 Park Avenue. She fully supports
approval of the Conditional Use Permit.



RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW THE INDOOR SALE OF

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES IN A C-2, NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERICIAL DISTRICT, FOR THE
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 901 BAYLISS AVENUE

WHEREAS, the application of David Huyck, for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the indoor sale
of alcoholic beverages in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 901 Bayliss
Avenue, having been considered by the City Council of the City of Beloit, Wisconsin at a public hearing held
for that purpose and due notice of said hearing having been given by publication as appears by the Proof of
Publication on file in the office of the City Clerk.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock
County, Wisconsin does hereby grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow the indoor sale of alcoholic
beverages in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 901 Bayliss Avenue in
the City of Beloit, for the following described premises:

Lots 37 and 38, Block 2 of Perrigo Place Addition, located in the City of Beloit, County of Rock,
State of Wisconsin. Said parcel contains .3329 acre, more or less.

As a condition of granting the Conditional Use Permit, the City Council does hereby stipulate the
following conditions and restrictions upon the Conditional Use, which are hereby deemed necessary for the
public interest:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes indoor alcohol sales within the existing building located at
901 Bayliss Avenue.

2. The applicant shall obtain and retain all applicable liquor licenses while the conditional use is
established and maintained.

3. The applicant may only possess a Class A Fermented Beverage License allowing the sale of beer for
off-premise consumption.

4. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan
Commission and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Planning and Building
Services Director may approve minor changes administratively.

Adopted this 3rd day of August, 2015.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Charles M. Haynes, Council President

ATTEST:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Conditional Use Permit Application for property located at 901 Bayliss Avenue

Date: August 3, 2015

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
David C. Huyck has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the indoor sale of alcoholic beverages in a
C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 901 Bayliss Avenue in the City of Beloit. The applicant
is seeking permission to sell beer in a bait and tackle shop planned to open in August of 2015.

Key Issues:
 The sale of alcoholic beverages is allowed as a conditional use in a C-2 District. The applicant has proposed

allowing the sale of alcoholic beverages in the bait and tackle shop to be located on the subject property.
o Approval of the CUP would allow the applicant to sell alcoholic beverages in the shop.

 The previous tenant of the building, Dick’s Bait and Tackle, sold beer and held an alcohol license until 2011.
o The business closed in 2011 and the building on the subject property has been vacant since then.
o The current tenant and applicant, Mr. Huyck, has a five-year lease on the building.

 If a Conditional Use Permit is granted, the applicant must also obtain an Alcohol Beverage License before any
alcoholic beverages may be legally sold on the subject property.

 The applicant has indicated that beer will be the only type of alcohol to be sold at the shop.
 The property is located within 300 feet of a church. However, the prohibition within 300 feet of a church only

applies to liquor licenses, not beer licenses.
 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on July 22, 2015, and voted unanimously (6-0) to recommend approval

of the Conditional Use Permit, subject to the other four conditions recommended by Planning staff.

Conformance to Strategic Plan:
 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and action on the proposed Resolution.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Resolution and Staff Report to Plan Commission



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: July 22, 2015 Agenda Item: 3 File Number: CU-2015-07

Applicant: David Hucyk Owner: Salvador Sanchez Location: 901 Bayliss Avenue

Existing Zoning: C-2, Neighborhood
Commercial District

Existing Land Use: Retail/Vacant Parcel Size: .3329 Acre

Request Overview/Background Information:
David C. Huyck has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the indoor sale of alcoholic beverages in a
C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 901 Bayliss Avenue in the City of Beloit. The applicant
is seeking permission to sell beer in a bait and tackle shop planned to open in August of 2015. The adjacent zoning and
land uses are as follows:

 North: Town of Beloit; Single-Family Residential
 South: R-1B Single Family Residential, Church
 East: C-2 Neighborhood Commercial District; Restaurant
 West: Town of Beloit; Single-Family Residential

Indoor alcohol sales are a conditional use in the C-2 District. If the Conditional Use Permit is approved, the City Council is
authorized to impose conditions it deems necessary to reduce or minimize any potential adverse effects on surrounding
properties.

Key Issues:
 The sale of alcoholic beverages is allowed as a conditional use in a C-2 District. The applicant has proposed

allowing the sale of alcoholic beverages in the bait and tackle shop located on the subject property.
o Approval of the CUP would allow the applicant to sell alcoholic beverages to be sold in a bait and tackle

shop to be opened on the subject property.
 The previous tenant of the building, Dick’s Bait and Tackle, sold beer and held an alcohol license until 2011.

o The business closed in 2011 and the building on the subject property has been vacant since then.
o The current tenant and applicant, Mr. Huyck, has a five-year lease on the building.

 If a Conditional Use Permit is granted, the applicant must also obtain an Alcohol Beverage License before any
alcoholic beverages may be legally sold on the subject property.

 The applicant has indicated that beer will be the only type of alcohol to be sold at the shop.
 The property is located within 300 feet of a church. However, the prohibition within 300 feet of a church only

applies to liquor licenses, not beer licenses.
 Findings of Fact

o Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare;

 Beer is a common product in bait and tackle shops all over the state. Planning Staff feels that
general public health and safety will not be negatively impacted by the proposed alcohol sales at
the shop.

o Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate
vicinity for purposes already permitted;

 The conditional use will not injure the use and enjoyment of nearby properties.
o Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood

of the subject property;
 The previous business on the subject property sold alcohol for many years before going out of

business. Resuming the sale of alcohol in a new, nearly identical business on the property is not
expected to diminish or impair property values in the neighborhood.

o Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development and
improvement of the surrounding property;

 Not Applicable.
o Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar or

otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that it will



cause a depreciation in property values;
 Not Applicable.

o Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to serve
the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use;

 Not Applicable
o Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and

 The subject property has adequate off-street parking for customers.
o Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

 The conditional use will comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:

The Comprehensive Plan recommends Neighborhood Commercial uses and a zoning district classification of C-2 for the
subject property. The underlying zoning district classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, as required by
Section 66.1001(3) of Wisconsin Statutes.

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow the sale of
alcoholic beverages in the bait and tackle shop in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at
901 Bayliss Avenue, based on the above Findings of Fact, under the following conditions of approval:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes indoor alcohol sales within the existing building located at 901 Bayliss
Avenue.

2. The applicant shall obtain and retain all applicable liquor licenses while the conditional use is established and
maintained.

3. The applicant may only possess a Class A Fermented Beverage License allowing the sale of beer for off-
premise consumption.

4. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan
Commission and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Planning and Building Services
Director may approve minor changes administratively.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
N/A

Attachments:
Photos, Zoning and Location Map, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List













July 8, 2015

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC

To Whom It May Concern:

David Huyck has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the sale of alcoholic
beverages in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District. The permit would allow the applicant to
sell alcohol at a proposed bait and tackle shop in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, on
the property located at:

901 Bayliss Avenue.

Alcohol sales are a conditional use in the C-2 District. The following public hearings will be held
regarding this proposed Conditional Use Permit:

City Plan Commission: Wednesday, July 22, 2015, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the
matter can be heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street.

City Council: Monday, August 3, 2015, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the matter can be
heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street.

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND THESE HEARINGS.

We are interested in your opinion.

Anyone bringing handouts to the Plan Commission meeting must bring ten (10) copies and
submit them to the Recording Secretary before the meeting begins. Staff is unable to leave the
meeting area to make copies.

For additional information, please contact Alex Morganroth in the Planning Division at (608)
364-6708 or morganrotha@beloitwi.gov. Comments will be accepted via telephone, email, and
U.S. Mail.



JJGJWELLNITZ HOLDINGS LLC

9302 S GUSTAFSON RD

CLINTON, WI 53525

ALLAN & KATHRYN BARTZ

2150 THOMAS ST

BELOIT, WI 53511

IMPERIAL VALLEY PROPERTIES LLC

P O BOX 860

EL CENTRO, CA 92244

TIM A & STACEY HINZPETER HINZPETER
LIVING TRUST

P O BOX 21386

SARASOTA, FL 34276

MICHAEL ROGERS

101 BUNN DR

ROCKTON, IL 61072

CORA COBB

1880 HARRISON AVE

BELOIT, WI 53511

MUSLIM CENTER OF BELOIT

1879 PARK AVE

ATTN: R EL AMIN/L MAJEED (LC)

BELOIT, WI 53511

US BANK NA

4801 FREDERICA ST

OWENSBORO, KY 42301

SANCHEZ RENTALS LLC

2112 ROOSEVELT AVE

BELOIT, WI 53511

CLARENCE MCMAHON

901 BAYLISS AVE

BELOIT, WI 53511



BELOIT POLICE DEPARTMENT



BELOIT POLICE DEPARTMENT

Calls for Service within a 1000 Radius of 901 Bayliss Av. 6/15/2015 through 7/22/15

BE1531411 Follow up 2:05:13 PM 6/15/2015 905 HENRY AV

BE1531428 Suspicious Acitivity 3:36:28 PM 6/15/2015 905 HENRY AV

BE1531466 Assist Citizen 9:09:51 PM 6/15/2015 1816 CHURCH ST

BE1531493 Business check 12:14:43 AM 6/16/2015 905 HENRY AV

BE1532033 911 abandon 3:46:12 AM 6/19/2015 1839 SPRUCE ST

BE1532126 911 abandon 2:23:39 PM 6/19/2015 1799 HEMLOCK ST & HENRY A

BE1532186 Assist other jurisdiction 8:08:40 PM 6/19/2015 1900 S WIS AV & BAYLISS A

BE1532335 911 abandon 5:04:24 PM 6/20/2015 1799 HARRISON AV & HENRY

BE1532367 911 abandon 10:07:46 PM 6/20/2015 1799 PARK AV & HENRY AV

BE1532628 Assist Citizen 10:53:47 AM 6/22/2015 1874 HARRISON AV

BE1532968 Health Care Center Transport 12:06:29 AM 6/24/2015 1881 WIS AV

BE1533073 911 abandon 2:57:11 PM 6/24/2015 1799 PARK AV & HENRY AV



BELOIT POLICE DEPARTMENT

BE1533135 911 abandon 7:22:37 PM 6/24/2015 1799 PARK AV & HENRY AV

BE1533233 Business check 11:23:23 AM 6/25/2015 905 HENRY AV

BE1533234 Follow up 11:35:21 AM 6/25/2015 905 HENRY AV

BE1533235 Follow up 11:40:20 AM 6/25/2015 905 HENRY AV

BE1533533 Traffic Stop 5:19:00 PM 6/26/2015 1899 PARK AV & BAYLISS AV

BE1533534 Assist other jurisdiction 5:20:59 PM 6/26/2015 1899 PARK AV & BAYLISS AV

BE1533535 Assist other jurisdiction 5:21:08 PM 6/26/2015 1899 PARK AV & BAYLISS AV

BE1533676 Security Check 9:48:51 AM 6/27/2015 905 HENRY AV

BE1533677 Traffic stop 9:52:21 AM 6/27/2015 1841 WIS AV

BE1533724 911 abandon 4:03:10 PM 6/27/2015 1799 HARRISON AV & HENRY

BE1533796 Assist Citizen 9:36:13 PM 6/27/2015 1861 CHURCH ST

BE1533809 911 abandon 10:55:15 PM 6/27/2015 1899 PARK AV & BAYLISS AV

BE1533840 Kid complaint 12:34:15 AM 6/28/2015 1874 PARK AV

BE1533926 Business check 11:20:34 AM 6/28/2015 905 HENRY AV

BE1533977 Special Assignment 3:54:17 PM 6/28/2015 1799 PARK AV & HENRY AV

BE1533981 Business check 4:04:53 PM 6/28/2015 905 HENRY AV

BE1534184 Follow up 11:02:33 AM 6/29/2015 1880 WIS AV



BELOIT POLICE DEPARTMENT

BE1534748 Unwanted Subject 8:47:09 AM 7/2/2015 728 BAYLISS AV

BE1534968 Traffic complaint 11:28:22 AM 7/3/2015 1800(BLOCK) HARRISON AV

BE1535060 Fireworks Complaint 9:53:52 PM 7/3/2015 1816 CHURCH ST

BE1535132 Business check 11:21:08 AM 7/4/2015 1802 HARRISON AV

BE1535230 911 abandon 8:38:51 PM 7/4/2015 1799 HEMLOCK ST & HENRY A

BE1535280 Loud complaint 11:03:05 PM 7/4/2015 771 BAYLISS AV

BE1535320 Disorderly Conduct 1:20:46 AM 7/5/2015 771 BAYLISS AV; APT 5

BE1535402 Assist other jurisdiction 3:00:40 PM 7/5/2015 899 HENRY AV & PARK AV

BE1535483 Assist other jurisdiction 12:45:25 AM 7/6/2015 999 HENRY AV & HARRISON A

BE1535589 Security Check 1:35:46 PM 7/6/2015 901 BAYLISS AV

BE1535617 Assist other jurisdiction 3:41:18 PM 7/6/2015 1802 HARRISON AV

BE1535649 Loud complaint 5:46:07 PM 7/6/2015 1816 CHURCH ST

BE1535690 Traffic Stop 9:55:11 PM 7/6/2015 1900 S WIS AV & BAYLISS A

BE1535766 Harrassment 9:16:14 AM 7/7/2015 1905 MOUND AV

BE1535914 Suspicious Acitivity 10:51:17 PM 7/7/2015 1800 PARK AV; BLOCK

BE1536022 Animal complaint 2:58:34 PM 7/8/2015 1874 HARRISON AV

BE1536104 Civil Dispute 2:38:16 AM 7/9/2015 1874 HARRISON AV



BELOIT POLICE DEPARTMENT

BE1536127 Follow up 9:33:51 AM 7/9/2015 1802 PARK AV

BE1536139 911 abandon 10:30:04 AM 7/9/2015 905 HENRY AV

BE1536648 Drug complaint 9:55:16 PM 7/11/2015 771 BAYLISS AV

BE1536754 Animal complaint 3:42:11 PM 7/12/2015 1806 PARK AV

BE1536842 Suspicious Acitivity 10:41:40 PM 7/12/2015 1871 PARK AV

BE1536914 Business check 11:24:32 AM 7/13/2015 1802 HARRISON AV

BE1536927 Abandon vehicle 12:28:29 PM 7/13/2015 1837 PARK AV

BE1537387 Assist Fire Department 3:51:12 PM 7/15/2015 1865 PARK AV

BE1537437 Assist other jurisdiction 8:18:22 PM 7/15/2015 1874 HARRISON AV

BE1537635 Assist other jurisdiction 12:54:42 AM 7/17/2015 1923 S HARRISON AV

BE1537814 Assist other jurisdiction 11:08:25 PM 7/17/2015 1799 PARK AV & HENRY AV

BE1537877 Animal complaint 6:56:10 AM 7/18/2015 1806 PARK AV

BE1537907 911 abandon 12:40:46 PM 7/18/2015 1799 HARRISON AV & HENRY

BE1537915 Animal complaint 1:33:16 PM 7/18/2015 841 HENRY AV

BE1537925 911 abandon 2:55:35 PM 7/18/2015 1799 HARRISON AV & HENRY

BE1538183 Assist other jurisdiction 9:58:48 PM 7/19/2015 1999 S HARRISON AV & E ED

BE1538203 Stabbing 12:28:45 AM 7/20/2015 1851 HARRISON AV



BELOIT POLICE DEPARTMENT

BE1538276 Hazardous Condition 2:02:52 PM 7/20/2015 1799 PARK AV & HENRY AV

BE1538406 Unwanted Subject 2:28:50 AM 7/21/2015 771 BAYLISS AV; APT 3

JV1534702 Traffic Stop 11:38:38 PM 7/8/2015 899 HENRY AV & PARK AV

SO1533421 Traffic complaint 9:23:06 AM 6/20/2015 898 BAYLISS AV & PARK AV

SO1533756 Out With Subject 12:18:59 AM 6/22/2015 1799 PARK AV & HENRY AV

TB1505674 Burglary 2:46:52 PM 6/21/2015 1969 S CHURCH ST

Reportable Incidents 1000 Feet of 901 Bayliss Av. 6/15/2015 through 7/22/2015

BE1531473 911 Abandon 9:44:41 PM 6/15/2015 1842 SPRUCE ST

BE1531604 911 Abandon 6:03:48 PM 6/16/2015 1799 HARRISON AV & HENRY

BE1532033 911 Abandon 3:46:12 AM 6/19/2015 1839 SPRUCE ST

BE1532564 Welfare Check 11:41:27 PM 6/21/2015 1799 PARK AV & HENRY AV

BE1532780 Welfare Check 1:51:17 AM 6/23/2015 1881 WIS AV

BE1532811 Sex Offense 9:15:09 AM 6/23/2015 841 HENRY AV



BELOIT POLICE DEPARTMENT

BE1532901 Warrant Service 3:53:31 PM 6/23/2015 841 HENRY AV

BE1532985 Disorderly Conduct 2:34:00 AM 6/24/2015 1799 HEMLOCK ST & HENRY A

BE1533100 911 Abandon 4:55:12 PM 6/24/2015 1802 HARRISON AV

BE1533201 Truancy 8:26:23 AM 6/25/2015 1816 CHURCH ST

BE1533213 Truancy 9:10:14 AM 6/25/2015 1844 DEWEY AV

BE1533726 Traffic Stop 4:05:04 PM 6/27/2015 1799 PARK AV & HENRY AV

BE1534055 Armed Subject 9:17:41 PM 6/28/2015 1880 WIS AV

BE1534673 Disorderly Conduct 7:57:41 PM 7/1/2015 1816 CHURCH ST

BE1534947 Traffic Stop 8:37:45 AM 7/3/2015 1799 PARK AV & HENRY AV

BE1535313 911 Abandon 12:54:27 AM 7/5/2015 1816 CHURCH ST

BE1535575 Traffic Stop 11:51:28 AM 7/6/2015 1799 PARK AV & HENRY AV

BE1535917 Warrant Service 11:00:28 PM 7/7/2015 1800 PARK AV; BLOCK

BE1536126 911 Abandon 9:30:52 AM 7/9/2015 1842 SPRUCE ST

BE1536160 Welfare Check 12:35:44 PM 7/9/2015 1799 PARK AV & HENRY AV

BE1536171 Assist Other Jurisdiction 1:34:59 PM 7/9/2015 1860 SPRUCE ST

BE1536179 911 Abandon 2:27:44 PM 7/9/2015 1842 SPRUCE ST

BE1536655 Assist Fire Department 11:16:17 PM 7/11/2015 1881 WIS AV



BELOIT POLICE DEPARTMENT

BE1536835 Assist Other Jurisdiction 9:56:35 PM 7/12/2015 1999 S HARRISON AV & E ED

BE1536844 Suspicious Activity 11:02:14 PM 7/12/2015 832 BAYLISS AV

BE1536853 Warrant Service 12:16:00 AM 7/13/2015 832 BAYLISS AV

BE1536905 911 Abandon 10:12:34 AM 7/13/2015 771 BAYLISS AV

BE1537142 Loud Complaint 2:08:55 PM 7/14/2015 1816 CHURCH ST

BE1537332 911 Abandon 11:15:25 AM 7/15/2015 999 HENRY AV & HARRISON A

SO1536571 Traffic Stop 2:58:02 PM 7/5/2015 899 HENRY AV & PARK AV

SO1536769 Drug Complaint 3:40:45 PM 7/6/2015 1802 HARRISON AV

SO1537078 Assist Other Jurisdiction 10:53:21 PM 7/7/2015 1800 PARK AV

SO1538135 Assist Other Jurisdiction 9:55:35 PM 7/12/2015 1978 S HARRISON AV

SO1540092 Traffic Stop 12:47:27 PM 7/21/2015 1999 S PARK AV & E EDDY S

TB1505765 Traffic Stop 5:47:52 PM 6/23/2015 1900 S WIS AV & BAYLISS A

TB1505893 Kid Complaint 3:58:11 PM 6/26/2015 1912 S PARK AV

TB1506325 Fraud Complaint 11:14:34 AM 7/7/2015 1908 S MOUND AV

TB1506653 Civil Dispute 12:19:15 AM 7/15/2015 1978 S HARRISON AV

TB1506733 Disturbance 12:51:42 AM 7/17/2015 1923 S HARRISON AV



4.c CU-2015-08 Zen Sushi Outdoor Seating Area 430 E Grand Avenue Council Report

RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW AN OUTDOOR SEATING
AREA WITH ALCOHOL IN THE CBD-1, CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT – CORE, FOR

THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 430 E. GRAND AVENUE

WHEREAS, the application of Kyotai Corp., doing business as Zen Sushi & Grill, for a
Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor seating area and outdoor sales, possession, & consumption of
alcohol in the CBD-1, Central Business District – Core, for the property located at 430 E. Grand Avenue,
having been considered by the City Council of the City of Beloit, Wisconsin at a public hearing held for
that purpose and due notice of said hearing having been given by publication as appears by the Proof of
Publication on file in the office of the City Clerk.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the City Council of the City of Beloit,
Rock County, Wisconsin does hereby grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor seating area and
outdoor sales, possession, & consumption of alcohol in the CBD-1, Central Business District – Core, for
the property located at 430 E. Grand Avenue in the City of Beloit, for the following described premises:

Lot 1 of a Certified Survey Map as recorded in Volume 35 on Pages 212-214 of the
Certified Survey Maps of Rock County, also the West 20 feet of the East 40.32 feet of
Lot 12, Block 48 of the Original Plat, located in the City of Beloit, County of Rock, State
of Wisconsin. Said parcel contains 0.5528 acre, more or less.

As a condition of granting the Conditional Use Permit, the City Council does hereby stipulate the
following conditions and restrictions upon the Conditional Use, which are hereby deemed necessary for
the public interest:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes Zen Sushi & Grill to serve food & beverages within the
existing, raised concrete patio area on the west side of the Phoenix building.

2. Prior to serving alcoholic beverages in the outdoor seating area, the applicant shall expand their
Alcoholic Beverages License to include the outdoor seating area.

3. The outdoor seating area shall include an outdoor alarm, marked exits, clear 36’’ exit pathways,
and no net loss in exit width. The Fire Inspector and Building Official will inspect the completed
outdoor seating area and establish a maximum occupancy, which shall be posted inside the
building and within the outdoor seating area.

4. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan
Commission and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Director of
Planning & Building Services may approve minor changes administratively.

Adopted this 3rd day of August, 2015.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Charles M. Haynes, Council President

ATTEST:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



4.c CU-2015-08 Zen Sushi Outdoor Seating Area 430 E Grand Avenue Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Conditional Use Permit Application for the property located at 430 E. Grand Avenue

Date: August 3, 2015

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Kyotai Corp., doing business as Zen Sushi & Grill, has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow an
outdoor seating area and outdoor sales, possession, & consumption of alcohol in the CBD-1, Central Business District –
Core, for the property located at 430 E. Grand Avenue.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 Zen Sushi & Grill will be opening soon on the ground floor of the Phoenix building. The applicant has proposed

the use of the raised concrete patio area on the west side of the Phoenix building, adjacent to the ramp leading
from E. Grand Avenue to the rear of the building. The patio is partially covered by an existing pergola. According
to the applicant, the furniture in the outdoor seating area will include tables & chairs as well as lounge-style
seating (e.g. outdoor couches), with seating for 24 customers.

 The existing patio area was approved by Planning staff along with the building in 2013 with the expectation that
Hendricks Commercial Properties would eventually lease the westernmost storefront to a restaurant tenant.

 The applicant has also applied for a Sidewalk Café License to place tables & chairs on the sidewalk in front of the
building. Sidewalk Café Licenses are approved by Planning staff, following consultation with the Downtown Beloit
Association Board of Directors, and are issued by the City Clerk’s Office.

 Section 125.68(3) of the Wisconsin Statutes regulates liquor sales within 300 feet of the main entrance of any
school, hospital, or church. This statute does not apply to restaurants, and therefore does not apply to this
request.

 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on July 22, 2015, and removed a condition requested by the Fire
Department which would have prohibited tables with an open flame. Following removal of the fire table prohibition,
the Plan Commission voted unanimously (6-0) to recommend approval of the Conditional Use Permit, subject to
the other four conditions recommended by Planning staff. The Fire Department’s requested condition, which was
part of the staff recommendation, but subsequently removed by the Plan Commission, stated that “the applicant
may not use tables or other furnishings that create an open flame, regardless of fuel type or source.”

 However, according to Section 6.03(1)(a)(3)(e) of the Fire Prevention Code, “no portable outdoor fireplace may be
located within 10 feet of any building or combustible structure.” Planning staff has measured the outdoor patio,
and found the walls of the adjacent buildings to be 18.2 feet apart in the location of the desired fire table.
Therefore, the Fire Code prohibits the use of all portable outdoor fireplaces on the Zen Sushi & Grill patio.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the
City’s mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it
will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and action on the proposed Resolution

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Resolution and Staff Report to the Plan Commission



4.c CU-2015-08 Zen Sushi Outdoor Seating Area 430 E Grand Avenue Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: July 22, 2015 Agenda Item: 5 File Number: CU-2015-08

Applicant: Kyotai Corp. Owner: 430 E. Grand Avenue
Holdings LLC

Location: 430 E. Grand Avenue

Existing Zoning: CBD-1, Central
Business District – Core

Existing Land Use: Mixed Use
(Residential Above Commercial)

Parcel Size: 0.55 Acre

Request Overview/Background Information:
Kyotai Corp., doing business as Zen Sushi & Grill, has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow an
outdoor seating area and outdoor sales, possession, & consumption of alcohol in the CBD-1, Central Business District –
Core, for the property located at 430 E. Grand Avenue.

Key Issues:
 Zen Sushi & Grill will be opening soon on the ground floor of the Phoenix building. The applicant has proposed

the use of the raised concrete patio area on the west side of the Phoenix building, adjacent to the ramp leading
from E. Grand Avenue to the rear of the building. The patio is partially covered by an existing pergola.

 This existing patio area was approved by Planning staff along with the building in 2013 with the expectation that
Hendricks Commercial Properties would eventually lease the westernmost storefront to a restaurant tenant.

 The applicant has also applied for a Sidewalk Café License to place tables & chairs on the sidewalk in front of the
building. Sidewalk Café Licenses are approved by Planning staff, following consultation with the Downtown Beloit
Association Board of Directors, and are issued by the City Clerk’s Office.

 According to the applicant, the furniture in the outdoor seating area will include tables & chairs as well as lounge-
style seating (e.g. outdoor couches), with seating for 24 customers.

 The minimum off-street parking requirements do not apply in the Central Business District (CBD), so no additional
parking is needed or proposed as part of this project. Adequate on-street parking stalls and public off-street lots
are in the vicinity, and the CBD has excellent pedestrian & bicycle infrastructure as well as regular transit service.

 Section 4-902 of the Zoning Ordinance states that outdoor seating areas for restaurants in the CBD are only
allowed if reviewed and approved in accordance with the Conditional Use Permit review procedures. The
application and site plan are attached to this report.

 Section 125.68(3) of the Wisconsin Statutes regulates liquor sales within 300 feet of the main entrance of any
school, hospital, or church. This statute does not apply to restaurants, and therefore does not apply to this
request. The applicant has a license to sell alcoholic beverages indoors, but has yet to apply for an extension to
sell alcoholic beverages in the sidewalk café and outdoor patio.

 The Fire Department is opposed to the use of a propane-fueled “fire pit table” in the outdoor seating area. The
City’s other Review Agents did not submit any comments on the proposed outdoor seating area.

 The attached Public Notice was sent to thirteen nearby property owners. Planning staff has not received any
comments.

 Findings of Fact
Based on Section 2-504 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based
on the following considerations:

a. Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare;

 Subject to certain conditions of approval and responsible management, the proposed outdoor
patio will enhance the Central Business District without endangering public health or welfare.

b. Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the
immediate vicinity for purposes already permitted;

 The proposed outdoor patio is part of a mixed-use development that includes 27 apartment
units. However, the outdoor patio is consistent with the retail- and entertainment-oriented
nature of the Central Business District, and common ownership of the entire development will
necessitate self-policing the uses in terms of noise, glare, odor, etc. to ensure harmony.

c. Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the
neighborhood of the subject property;

 The proposed outdoor patio will further enhance the area in and around the Phoenix building.
d. Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development



4.c CU-2015-08 Zen Sushi Outdoor Seating Area 430 E Grand Avenue Council Report

and improvement of the surrounding property;
 The surrounding area is fully (re)developed.

e. Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar
or otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that
it will cause a depreciation in property values;

 The proposed outdoor seating area will consist of materials, furnishings, and accessories that
are compatible with the contemporary urban design of the Phoenix building.

f. Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to
serve the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use;

 Adequate facilities and infrastructure are available to serve the proposed outdoor seating
area.

g. Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and
 There are no off-street parking requirements in the CBD and the proposed outdoor seating

area is not expected to cause traffic congestion.
h. Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

 The conditional uses will comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning
Ordinance.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The City’s Comprehensive Plan refers to the Downtown Plan, which recommends Planned Mixed Use: Office/Residential
Above Retail for the subject property. This request and the underlying CBD zoning classification are consistent with this
recommendation. Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor seating
area and outdoor sales, possession, & consumption of alcohol in the CBD-1, Central Business District – Core, for the
property located at 430 E. Grand Avenue, based on the above Findings of Fact and subject to the following conditions:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes Zen Sushi & Grill to serve food & beverages within the existing, raised
concrete patio area on the west side of the Phoenix building.

2. Prior to serving alcoholic beverages in the outdoor seating area, the applicant shall expand their Alcoholic
Beverages License to include the outdoor seating area.

3. The applicant may not use tables or other furnishings that create an open flame, regardless of fuel type or source.
4. The outdoor seating area shall include an outdoor alarm, marked exits, clear 36’’ exit pathways, and no net loss in

exit width. The Fire Inspector and Building Official will inspect the completed outdoor seating area and establish a
maximum occupancy, which shall be posted inside the building and within the outdoor seating area.

5. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan Commission
and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Director of Planning & Building Services may
approve minor changes administratively.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Photos – Patio, Photos – Furniture, Patio Layout, Site Plan, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List.



4.c CU-2015-08 Zen Sushi Outdoor Seating Area 430 E Grand Avenue Council Report

Photos – Existing Patio

View from Front View from Rear



4.c CU-2015-08 Zen Sushi Outdoor Seating Area 430 E Grand Avenue Council Report

Photos – Proposed Furniture (1 of 2 pages)



4.c CU-2015-08 Zen Sushi Outdoor Seating Area 430 E Grand Avenue Council Report

Photos – Proposed Furniture (2 of 2 pages)



4.c CU-2015-08 Zen Sushi Outdoor Seating Area 430 E Grand Avenue Council Report

Proposed Patio Layout



4.c CU-2015-08 Zen Sushi Outdoor Seating Area 430 E Grand Avenue Council Report



4.c CU-2015-08 Zen Sushi Outdoor Seating Area 430 E Grand Avenue Council Report



4.c CU-2015-08 Zen Sushi Outdoor Seating Area 430 E Grand Avenue Council Report



4.c CU-2015-08 Zen Sushi Outdoor Seating Area 430 E Grand Avenue Council Report



4.c CU-2015-08 Zen Sushi Outdoor Seating Area 430 E Grand Avenue Council Report



PROCEEDINGS OF THE BELOIT CITY COUNCIL
100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
City Hall Forum – 7:00 p.m.
Monday, July 20, 2015

Presiding: Charles M. Haynes
Present: Sheila De Forest, Regina Hendrix, Ana Kelly, Chuck Kincaid, David F. Luebke,

Marilyn Sloniker
Absent: None

1. President Haynes called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Forum at Beloit City Hall.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS – none.

4. PUBLIC HEARING

a. Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented a proposed Ordinance
amendment to amend Sections 30.17(1)(b)2, (b)3, (b)6 and (b)7a of the Code of General
Ordinances of the City of Beloit pertaining to Electronically Variable-Message Signs. The City of
Beloit staff has drafted an Ordinance to amend four sections of the City’s Outdoor Sign
Regulations, hereafter referred to as the “Sign Ordinance.” The purpose of the proposed
amendments is to allow the Central Christian Church on Milwaukee Road and the School District
of Beloit to use an Electronically Variable-Message (EVM) Sign to notify the public of programs at
the church and schools.
 The most substantive changes are listed below.

o Section 1 of the proposed Ordinance adds the PLI zoning district to the list of zoning
districts permitted to have EVM signs as secondary, on-premise signs.

o Section 2 establishes maximum sign areas for EVM signs in the PLI zoning districts.
o Section 3 changes where EVM signs are allowed to be located with regards to the vision

triangle.
 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on July 8, 2015, and voted unanimously (6-0) to

recommend approval of the Sign Ordinance with two modifications.
 Location: The original version of the Sign Ordinance proposed permitting EVM signs in PLI

and C-1 zoning districts. The Plan Commission recommended only allowing EVM signs in the
PLI zoning district.

 Operating Time: The original version of the Sign Ordinance proposed establishments with
EVM signs only have time restrictions if they abut a residential district. The Plan Commission
recommended adding time restrictions on EVM signs for establishments that either abut a
residential district OR are located directly across from a residential district.

President Haynes opened the public hearing.
 James Van de Bogart spoke opposed to this ordinance change and shared concerns

of distracted driving as a result of busy signs being allowed. He also stated that the
possibility existed that the City could wind up being responsible for abandoned signs.

 Janelle Marotz spoke in favor of this ordinance on behalf of the Beloit School District.
They would like to purchase another sign similar to the one at Aldrich Middle School
which is a 4’ x 8’ signs with 3 lines of text.

 Pastor Craig Zastrow spoke in favor of this ordinance on behalf of the congregation
at Central Christian Church located at 2460 Milwaukee Road. They are redeveloping
their sign plan and have not committed to a sign type due to challenges in original
placement.

President Haynes closed the public hearing.
Councilors Luebke and Sloniker made a motion to suspend the rules for a 2nd reading hearing.
Discussion followed. The motion failed on a vote of 3-4 with Kelly, De Forest, Haynes and Kincaid



voting no. Councilors De Forest and Kincaid moved to lay over the ordinance to the August 3,
2015 regular meeting. Motion carried on a vote of 6-0-1 with Luebke abstaining. File 6068.

5. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

 Walter Knight, Beloit, addressed the council as a follow up on the condition of the railroad
crossing at the 1400 block of Wisconsin Avenue and thanked the council, especially to the Public
Works Director, Greg Boysen, for addressing the need to complete these railroad crossing
repairs.

6. CONSENT AGENDA

Councilor De Forest asked to have item 6.c removed from the consent agenda. Councilors Luebke
and Sloniker made a motion to adopt the Consent Agenda items 6.a, 6.b, 6.d 6.e. & 6.f. Motion
carried. The Consent Agenda is accepted, approved, adopted or referred and acted upon as required
by state and local code by a vote of 7-0.

a. The minutes of the regular meeting of July 6
th

and special meeting of July 6
th
, 2015 were

approved.
b. The application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a single-family attached dwelling in C-2,

Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 911 East Grand Avenue was
referred to Plan Commission. File 8614

d. The application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow outdoor seating area and outdoor sales,
possession, & consumption of alcohol in the CBD-1, Central Business District – Core, for the
property located at 430 E. Grand Avenue doing business as Zen Sushi & Grill was referred to
Plan Commission. File 8540

e. The resolution authorizing final payment of Public Works Contract C15-06, Colley Road Main
Extension was approved. File 8678

f. The resolution approving a Change of Agent for The Local, LLC, d/b/a The Local Sports Bar and
Grill, located at 443 E. Grand Avenue, from Mike Dutter to Aimee Marlette was approved.
File 8688

c. Ms. Christensen presented the application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the sale of
alcoholic beverages in C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 901
Bayliss Avenue (Dave’s Bait and Tackle). Councilor De Forest expressed concerns about alcohol
in that neighborhood and is requesting a report from the Police Department that includes calls for
service that extends one block in each direction before this comes back for council approval next
meeting. Councilors De Forest and Kelly made a motion to refer the item to the Plan Commission.
Motion carried. File 8694

7. ORDINANCES

a. Fire Chief, Bradley Liggett presented a proposed ordinance to Repeal and Recreate Section 1.10
of the Code of General Ordinances for the City of Beloit pertaining to Emergency Management.
Chief Liggett explained that this update addresses concerns relating to the line of succession for
the City Manager and involves management in Emergency Response. It also brings us into
compliance with NIMS. Councilors Luebke and Sloniker made a motion to lay over the
ordinance until the August 3, 2015 regular meeting. Motion carried. File 6543

8. APPOINTMENTS

Councilor Haynes announced the openings and submitted the following appointments to City
Committees, Boards, and Commissions for approval. Councilor Kincaid and Sloniker made a motion
to approve the appointments, and Councilor Hendrix seconded. The motion carried.

a. Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee: John N. Metter, term ending June 30, 2017. File
6145

b. Municipal Golf Committee: Ex Officio member Chris Moxley, (replacing Bess Davies) as
Women’s Club Rep. and Ex Officio member Gary L. Gard, (replacing Gary Sherer) as Senior’s
Club Rep. File 7382

c. Municipal Library Board: Ex Officio member Nora Gard, (replacing Missy Henderson) as Beloit



School District’s, Representative for the 2015-2016 school year and Incumbent Maribeth Miller to
a term ending June 20, 2018. File 5991

9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS

 Councilor Hendrix expressed gratitude for an officer of the Beloit Police Department who
participated with Beloit College students in a “Beloit-ology” scavenger hunt. The officer even got
out of his car to take a picture with the group to fulfill one of their tasks.

 Councilor Kelly went downtown on Sunday and was so pleased at how many people were
downtown on a Sunday afternoon

 Councilor De Forest went on the Parks tour July 8
th

and found it useful and entertaining. She has
been attending the farmer’s market regularly. She attended the Rock County Criminal Justice
Coordinating Committee this month and expressed thanks to interim Chief Zibolski for
representing the City of Beloit. She apologized in advance for having to miss the August 3

rd

council meeting.
 Councilor Kincaid continues to attend the robust farmer’s market. He also attended his 2nd

municipal golf committee and is impressed with the hard work of the members who understand
the issues and are working to make the course better.

 Councilor Luebke reminded all that National Night Out is coming up Tuesday August 4
th

from
5:30-8:30 pm. He also invited everyone to attend the Friday at Harry’s Place at 7:00 pm this
Friday at the Harry Moore Pavilion at Riverside Park. This week’s performance is by “Mr. Big
Stuff.”

 Councilor Sloniker went on the Parks tour July 8
th

and learned a lot. She also attended the
She also attended the SLATS meeting which discusses road projects and conditions. She
learned that while the work on Prairie is behind schedule, Inman Parkway is on schedule.

10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATIONS - none

11. REPORTS FROM BOARDS AND CITY OFFICERS- none

12. Councilor’s Sloniker and De Forest made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:47pm. Motion carried

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk
www.beloitwi.gov
Date approved by Council:



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Conditional Use Permit Application for property located at 2900 Milwaukee Road – Council Referral to the Plan
Commission

Date: August 3, 2015

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Chipman Design Architecture, on behalf of Noodles and Company, has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to
allow an outdoor seating area and outdoor sales, possession, & consumption of alcohol in a PUD, Planned Unit
Development District, for the property located at 2900 Milwaukee Road.
Key Issues:

 Noodles and Company will be opening soon in a building on the subject property previously occupied by Arby’s.
 The applicant has proposed the construction of a concrete patio on the northwest side of the building facing

Milwaukee Road.
 The patio area was approved by Planning staff in a site plan review in June of 2015 with the expectation that

McBain Properties would eventually lease the building to a restaurant tenant.
 Condition #5 of the Resolution authorizing a PUD for 2850 and 2900 Milwaukee Road states that the regulations

for allowable use and dimensional standards of the C-3 District shall apply to the parcels within the PUD.
o Section 4-902 of the Zoning Ordinance states that outdoor seating areas for restaurants in a C-3

Commercial District are only allowed if reviewed and approved in accordance with the Conditional Use
Permit review procedures.

 The application and site plan are attached to this report.

Conformance to Strategic Plan:

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:

 Referral to the Plan Commission for the August 5, 2015 meeting.
 This item will most likely return to the City Council for a public hearing and possible action on August 17, 2015.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Zoning and Location Map, Application



limi







ZMA-2015-02, 2460 Milwaukee Road-1420 Office Park Lane, Council Referral

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Zoning Map Amendment Application for the properties located at 2460 Milwaukee Road & 1420 Office Park
Lane – Council Referral to the Plan Commission

Date: August 3, 2015

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Craig Zastrow, Executive Pastor of Central Christian Church, has submitted an application for a Zoning Map Amendment
to change the zoning district classification from C-1, Office District & M-2, General Manufacturing District to PLI, Public
Lands & Institutions District, for the properties located at 2460 Milwaukee Road & 1420 Office Park Lane.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 This request includes the main church campus parcel on Milwaukee Road, as well as a vacant church-owned

parcel that includes a stormwater retention pond to the south of the church campus.
 Planning staff supports this proposed Zoning Map Amendment, as both properties are planned for Institutional &

Community Service uses. If approved, the requested rezoning will bring the subject properties into compliance
with the City’s Future Land Use Map, which is part of the City’s Comprehensive Plan.

 The applicant is not proposing any land use changes at this time.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the
City’s mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it
will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 Referral to the Plan Commission for the August 5, 2015 meeting
 This item will most likely return to the City Council for a public hearing and possible action on August 17, 2015

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Application



ZMA-2015-02, 2460 Milwaukee Road-1420 Office Park Lane, Council Referral



ZMA-2015-02, 2460 Milwaukee Road-1420 Office Park Lane, Council Referral



Page 1 of 2

ORDINANCE NO. _______________

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTIONS 30.17(2)(b)2, (b)3, (b)6 AND (b)7a OF THE
CODE OF GENERAL ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELOIT PERTAINING TO
ELECTRONICALLY VARIABLE-MESSAGE SIGNS

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

Section 1. Section 30.17(2)(b)2 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit
is hereby amended to read as follows:

“2. Be permitted in C-2, C-3, and CBD and PLI zoning districts as secondary, on-
premises signs.”

Section 2. Section 30.17(2)(b)3 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit
is hereby amended to read as follows:

“3. Not exceed maximum allowable sign area as follows:

Zoning District Maximum EVM Sign Area

C-2, & C-3, & PLI 75 sq. ft.

CBD 150 sq. ft.

An "on-premises, sign area bonus" may be permitted by §30.13(3) of this chapter.”

Section 3. Section 30.17(2)(b)6 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit
is hereby amended to read as follows:

“6. Not be located in the vision triangle as defined in section 8-400 of the Zoning
Code.Be set back as required by the Zoning Code.”

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5", Hanging: 0.5"



Page 2 of 2

Section 4. Section 30.17(2)(b)7a of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit
is hereby amended to read as follows:

“a. Operate only between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. if the commercial
establishment at which they are located abuts or is directly across the street
from a residential zoning district.”

Section 5. This ordinance shall be in force and take effect upon passage and
publication.

Adopted this 20th day of July, 2015.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

By:
Charles M. Haynes, President

ATTEST:

By:
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk

PUBLISHED:
EFFECTIVE DATE:
01-611100-5231-

tdh/ordinances/30.17(2) = ORD = 20150623 (15- )



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Sign Ordinance Amendment

Date: August 3, 2015

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Central Christian Church has an interest in installing an Electronically Variable-Message (EVM) sign to notify the public of
programs at the church. It is currently prohibited to have an EVM sign at their current location. In response to their
request, City of Beloit staff has drafted an Ordinance to amend four sections of the City’s Outdoor Sign Regulations,
hereafter referred to as the “Sign Ordinance.” The proposed Ordinance is attached.

Key Issues:

 The most substantive changes are listed below.
 Section 1 of the proposed Ordinance adds the PLI zoning district to the list of zoning districts permitted to have

EVM signs as secondary, on-premise signs.
 Section 2 establishes maximum sign areas for EVM signs in the PLI zoning districts.
 Section 3 changes where EVM signs are allowed to be located with regards to the vision triangle.
 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on July 8, 2015, and voted unanimously (6-0) to recommend approval of

the Sign Ordinance with two modifications.
o Location: The original version of the Sign Ordinance proposed permitting EVM signs in PLI and C-1 zoning

districts. The Plan Commission recommended only allowing EVM signs in the PLI zoning district.
o Operating Time: The original version of the Sign Ordinance proposed establishments with EVM signs only

have time restrictions if they abut a residential district. The Plan Commission recommended adding time
restrictions on EVM signs for establishments that either abut a residential district OR are located directly
across from a residential district.

 There are 155 parcels zoned PLI in the City of Beloit. Of these 155 parcels, 70 are owned by the City of Beloit,
28 are owned by Beloit College, and 21 are owned by the School District of Beloit. Churches and private
cemeteries are located on 12 parcels zoned PLI. The remaining parcels are owned by a variety of owners,
including Alliant Energy, Beloit Health System, Historical Society, YMCA, US Army, Family Services, and the
Boys and Girls Club.

Conformance to Strategic Plan:

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:

 City Council consideration and action on the proposed Resolution.
.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Proposed Ordinance, Plan Commission Staff Report



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Sign Ordinance Amendments

Date: July 20, 2015

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
City of Beloit staff has drafted an Ordinance to amend four sections of the City’s Outdoor Sign Regulations, hereafter
referred to as the “Sign Ordinance.” The purpose of the proposed amendments is to allow the Central Christian Church on
Milwaukee Road to use an Electronically Variable-Message (EVM) Sign to notify the public of programs at the church. The
proposed Ordinance is attached.

Key Issues:
 The most substantive changes are listed below.
 Section 1 of the proposed Ordinance adds the PLI zoning district to the list of zoning districts permitted to have

EVM signs as secondary, on-premise signs.
 Section 2 establishes maximum sign areas for EVM signs in the PLI zoning districts.
 Section 3 changes where EVM signs are allowed to be located with regards to the vision triangle.
 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on July 8, 2015, and voted unanimously (6-0) to recommend approval of

the Sign Ordinance with two modifications.
o Location: The original version of the Sign Ordinance proposed permitting EVM signs in PLI and C-1

zoning districts. The Plan Commission recommended only allowing EVM signs in the PLI zoning district.
o Operating Time: The original version of the Sign Ordinance proposed establishments with EVM signs only

have time restrictions if they abut a residential district. The Plan Commission recommended adding time
restrictions on EVM signs for establishments that either abut a residential district OR are located directly
across from a residential district.

Conformance to Strategic Plan:

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:

 City Council consideration and action on the proposed Resolution.
.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Proposed Ordinance, Plan Commission Staff Report



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: July 8, 2015 Agenda Item: 3 File Number: RPB-2015-07

Request Overview/Background Information:
City of Beloit staff has drafted an Ordinance to amend four sections of the City’s Outdoor Sign Regulations, hereafter
referred to as the “Sign Ordinance.” This ordinance amendment was generated in response to a request from Central
Christian Church on Milwaukee Road to use an Electronically Variable-Message (EVM) Sign to notify the public of
programs at the church. The proposed Ordinance is attached.

Key Issues:
 The most substantive changes are listed below.
 Section 1 of the proposed Ordinance adds C-1 & PLI zoning districts to the list of zoning districts permitted to

have EVM signs as secondary, on-premise signs.
 Section 2 establishes maximum sign areas for EVM signs in C-1 & PLI zoning districts.
 Section 3 changes where EVM signs are allowed to be located with regards to the vision triangle.
 Section 4 adds time restrictions for establishments with EVM signs that are directly across from residential

districts.
 The attached Public Notice was published in the Beloit Daily News.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
 The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan.
 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached Ordinance to amend various sections of
the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit pertaining to Electronically Variable-Message (EVM) signs.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Proposed Ordinance and Public Notice



PUBLIC NOTICE
City of Beloit staff has drafted an
Ordinance to amend four sections
of the City’s Outdoor Sign
Regulations. The proposed
amendments will allow Electronic
Variable Messaging signs in both
C-1 and PLI zoning districts. The
proposed Ordinance is available
on the City’s website
(www.ci.beloit.wi.us) under
Document Center > Public Notices
> 2015. The following public
hearings will be held regarding this
proposed Ordinance: City Plan
Commission: Wednesday, July 8,
2015, and City Council: Monday,
July 20, 2015, both at 7:00 PM or
as soon thereafter as the matter
can be heard, in The Forum, Beloit
City Hall, 100 State Street. The
public is invited to attend these
hearings. We are interested in
your opinion. For additional
information, contact Alex
Morganroth in the Planning &
Building Services Division at (608)
364-6708.
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk
#01-611100-5231-85
Published: July 3, 2015



Revised 01-10-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: An Ordinance to Repeal and Recreate Section 1.10 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit Pertaining
to Emergency Management

Date: August 3, 2015

Presenter(s): Chief Bradley Liggett Department(s): Fire

Overview/Background Information:

The City of Beloit has reorganized the Emergency Management Function and reassigned these duties to operate under the
auspices of the Fire Department. This ordinance repeals and recreates Chapter 1.10 of the Code of General Ordinances of
the City of Beloit.

The goal of this ordinance change was to mirror state statute for terminology and to be compliant with the National Incident
Management System and the National Response Framework. The Emergency Management Function should be performed
as a critical supporting role in accordance with the national response model. Our previous ordinance created a model where
the Emergency Management Function was actually performing a command function instead of a support function.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 Previously the ordinance was also void of interim successors for the Director of Emergency Management Services this ordinance

creates a line of succession.
 This ordinance also reflects changes in the continuity of government line of succession for the City Manager. It is extremely

important to make sure we reflect the line of authority based on our current operating capacity.
 This ordinance expands involvement of all the city management team in emergency management.
 This ordinance adopts minimum training standards for all employees in compliance with the National Incident Management

System.
 Finally, emergency operations will adopt the National Incident Management System as our common operating platform for incident

management.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):
1. As an eco-municipality, focus on the sustainable stewardship of City resources, services and infrastructure; to protect both our built and
natural environment and enhance the quality of life for current and future generations.
3. Proactively partner with individuals and businesses to promote a safe and healthy community, minimize personal injury, prevent loss of
life and protect property and natural resources.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels
o NA

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature
o NA

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems
o NA

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently
o NA

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation: Approval of the Ordinance

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: The management team will be submitting a budget for the Emergency Management Function for exercises,
training, emergency operation center facility needs, and emergency operations center job aids.



Page 1 of 7

ORDINANCE NO. _______________

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL AND RECREATE SECTION 1.10 OF THE CODE OF
GENERAL ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELOIT PERTAINING TO EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

Section 1. Section 1.10 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit is hereby
repealed and recreated to read as follows:

“1.10 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT.

(1) AUTHORITY. This section is enacted pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 323 of the
Wisconsin Statutes.

(2) POLICY AND PURPOSE.

(a) Emergency Management requires the preparation for and the carrying out of all
emergency functions, other than functions for which the military forces are
primarily responsible, to minimize and repair injury and damage resulting from
disasters of all kinds, including enemy action and natural and unforeseen
disasters. It is, therefore, necessary to:

1. Establish a local comprehensive Emergency Management Plan.

2. Provide for the exercise of necessary powers during emergencies
resulting from disaster; and

3. Provide for cooperation and mutual assistance between the City of
Beloit and other political subdivisions.

4. Collaborate with private individuals and entities for the purpose of
preparing for, responding to, and recovering from such disasters and
emergencies.

(b) It is further declared to be the purpose of this section and the policy of the City
that all emergency management functions of the City shall be carried out
pursuant to this section and the comprehensive Emergency Management Plan
developed hereunder, as part of a countywide emergency management
program to the maximum extent practicable. Existing services and resources of
this City shall be used as needed. All of this shall be carried out within the
framework of Chapter 323 of the Wisconsin Statutes.



Page 2 of 7

(3) DEFINITIONS. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this section, the definitions
outlined in Chapter 323 of the Wisconsin Statutes are hereby adopted and, by
reference, made a part of this section as if fully set forth herein, including any
subsequent amendments or revisions thereto.

(4) DIRECTOR OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES.

(a) Appointment. The Fire Chief, or his/her designee, shall be the Director of
Emergency Management for the City of Beloit. For the purposes of this section,
any reference to the Director of Emergency Management shall mean the
Director or his/her designee.

(b) Duties and Authority.

1. The Director of Emergency Management shall have direct responsibility
for the organization, administration, and operation of emergency
management within the framework of the City’s Emergency
Management Plan, subject to the direction of the City Manager and the
City Council.

2. The Director of Emergency Management shall serve as chairperson for
the Emergency Management Committee. The Director of Emergency
Management may establish subcommittees and/or task forces at any
time to enhance training, planning, or to prepare various prevention
and response strategies to individual risks. Subcommittees and task
forces may contain members of the Emergency Management
Committee as well as other selected individuals having specialized
knowledge, skills, or training that can assist the City in assessing risk and
preparing appropriate responses.

3. The Director of Emergency Management shall coordinate all activities
for emergency management within the City and shall maintain liaison
and cooperate with emergency management in local, state and federal
governments.

4. The Director of Emergency Management shall prepare a comprehensive
plan for the emergency management of the City.

5. The Director of Emergency Management shall participate in county and
state emergency management activities when requested, and shall have
such additional responsibilities as may from time to time be required by
the City Manager or the City Council.

6. In preparing and executing the Emergency Management Plan, the
Director of Emergency Management Services shall utilize the services,
equipment, supplies, and facilities of the City to the maximum extent
practicable. All city personnel are directed to cooperate with and



Page 3 of 7

extend such services and facilities to the Director of Emergency
Management Services.

(5) EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE.

(a) Membership. There is hereby created a City of Beloit Emergency Management
Committee. The Emergency Management Committee shall consist of the City
Manager, the City Council President, all City department heads, the Director of
Emergency Management, the Deputy Director of Emergency Management
Services for Planning, and the Deputy Director of Emergency Management
Services for Operations.

(b) Powers and Duties. The Emergency Management Committee shall be
responsible for advising the City Council and shall have the authority to conduct
all matters of business regarding hazard mitigation, emergency planning,
response support, and disaster recovery of natural and man-made disasters.

(c) Meetings. The Emergency Management Committee shall meet periodically to
coordinate emergency preparedness and shall convene as soon as possible upon
the declaration of an emergency. Special meetings may be called at the
direction of the committee chairperson.

(d) Response. Upon notice of a declaration of emergency, each committee member
shall respond immediately to the Emergency Operations Center to await further
instructions.

(6) DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES.

(a) Appointment. The Director of Emergency Management Services may appoint
one or more individuals to serve as Deputy Director(s) of Emergency
Management Services to assist with performing emergency management
activities.

(b) Powers and Duties. A Deputy Director of Emergency Management Services
appointed in this section shall be under the supervision of the Director of
Emergency Management Services and shall perform such day to day duties as
are necessary to support planning, training and coordination of emergency
management activities.

(7) EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PLAN. The Director of Emergency Management Services
shall prepare a comprehensive plan for the emergency management of the City of
Beloit. Each department of the City shall collaborate with the Director of Emergency
Management Services for the purpose of creating an Emergency Management Plan. The
Emergency Management Plan created hereunder is hereby approved and adopted by
the City Council. The plan shall be filed with the City Clerk and shall be reviewed,
updated and submitted to the City Council for approval at least once every three (3)
years.



Page 4 of 7

(8) DECLARATION OF EMERGENCIES.

(a) Declaration of Emergency by the City.

1. The City Council is empowered by §323.11, Wis. Stats., to declare, by
ordinance or resolution, an emergency existing within the City of Beloit
whenever conditions arise by reason of a riot or civil commotion, a
disaster, or an imminent threat of a disaster, that impairs
transportation, food or fuel supplies, medical care, fire, health or police
protection, or other critical systems of the City of Beloit.

2. The City Council may, by ordinance or resolution, promulgate any
orders, rules, and regulations relating to the conduct of persons and the
use of property as shall be necessary and expedient to protect the
public peace, health, safety, protection and welfare of persons or
property, including prohibiting, restricting, and removing all
unnecessary traffic, both vehicular and pedestrian, from highways
within the City, and to insure the cooperation necessary in emergency
management activities.

3. The period of the emergency shall be limited by the ordinance or
resolution to the time during which the emergency conditions exist or
are likely to exist.

(b) Declaration by the Governor. The Governor for the State of Wisconsin is
empowered by §323.10, Wis. Stats., to issue an executive order declaring a state
of emergency for the State of Wisconsin, or any portion thereof, if the Governor
determines that an emergency resulting from a disaster or the imminent threat
of a disaster exists. The state of emergency shall not exceed 60 days, unless the
state of emergency is extended by joint resolution of the Wisconsin State
Legislature. The executive order may be revoked at the discretion of either the
Governor by executive order or the Wisconsin State Legislature by joint
resolution.

(9) EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS AND ORGANIZATION.

(a) City Manager.

1. The City Manager shall oversee all operations at the Emergency
Operations Center and shall have final decision-making authority
throughout the state of emergency.

2. Whenever necessary to respond to an emergency for which adequate
ordinances or resolutions have not been adopted by the City Council,
the City Manager, or in his/her absence, the person in charge as
determined by the order of succession established in subsection (11),
below, may, by proclamation, promulgate and enforce such orders,



Page 5 of 7

rules, and regulations that appear necessary and expedient. Any
proclamation issued hereunder shall be subject to ratification,
alteration, modification or repeal by the City Council as soon as the
Council can meet. Subsequent action taken by the City Council shall not
affect the validity of the proclamation issued by the City Manager.

3. The City Manager shall issue all necessary proclamations, warnings, and
alerts as required by the Emergency Management Plan.

(b) Emergency Operations Center Manager. The Emergency Operations Center
Manager will be the member of the Emergency Management Committee and
will be appointed by the City Manager and generally determined by whose
response discipline would be the primary responder to the emergency (i.e.
SWAT incident—Police Chief, snow emergency—Public Works Director).

(c) Operations.

1. Upon declaration of a state of emergency affecting the City of Beloit,
members of the Emergency Management Committee shall serve as the
Emergency Operations Center Command Staff under the general
direction of the Emergency Management Coordinator. Additional staff
may be appointed or designated to serve on the Committee depending
upon the emergency type, length or duration.

2. Normal City operations shall continue unless suspended by order or
directive of the City Manager. The City Manager may require City
personnel to perform services performed in the normal and general
course of employment to address the state of emergency.

3. The Emergency Operations Center Command Staff shall plan, direct,
coordinate, and control all facets of emergency management operations
from the moment an emergency has been formally declared and until
the state of emergency is formally lifted.

4. During a state of emergency, the City Manager may contract with any
person to provide equipment or services to be used to respond to a
disaster, or the imminent threat of a disaster.

(10) LOCATION OF EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER. The Emergency Operations Center
shall be located the Beloit Police Department Briefing Room at 100 State Street in the
City of Beloit unless that site becomes unsuitable or unusable. In the event that the
primary Emergency Operations Center becomes unsuitable or unusable, the Emergency
Operations Center shall be located at the Fire Department Headquarters at 1111 Church
Street in the City of Beloit. The Emergency Operations Center shall serve as the primary
location and control facility from which members of the Emergency Management
Committee and their designees shall direct emergency management activities within the
City.



Page 6 of 7

(11) SUCCESSION TO OFFICE. During an emergency, and in the absence of the City Manager,
interim successors to the Office of the City Manager shall be in the order listed below:

(a) City Attorney

(b) Police Chief

(c) Fire Chief

(d) Finance and Administrative Services Director

(12) MUTUAL AID AGREEMENTS. The City Manager may, subject to the approval of the City
Council, enter into mutual aid agreements with other political subdivisions, agencies,
and federally recognized American Indian tribes and bands of this state, and, upon prior
approval of the Adjutant General, with such entities in bordering states. A copy of each
agreement shall be filed with the Office of the Adjutant General of the Department of
Military Affairs within 10 days after execution of the agreement.

(13) PROHIBITED CONDUCT. No person shall willfully obstruct, hinder, or delay any member
of the emergency management organization in the enforcement of any order, rule,
regulation, or plan issued pursuant to this section, or violate any order, rule, regulation,
or plan issued pursuant to the authority contained in this section. Any person who shall
violate any provision of the section shall upon conviction thereof be subject to a penalty
as provided in 25.04 of this code.”

Section 2. Section 25.04(4)(c) of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit is
hereby amended to add in numerical order to the Schedule of Cash Deposits the following penalty
provision for violations of the Emergency Management Ordinance:

Section Offense
First

Offense
Second
Offense

Third and
Subsequent

Offense

1.10(13)
Obstructing Emergency Management Personnel or
Violation of Emergency Management Order, Rule or
Regulation

200 200 200



Page 7 of 7

Section 3. This ordinance shall be in force and take effect upon passage and publication.

Adopted this 3rd day of August, 2015.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

By:
Charles M. Haynes, President

ATTEST:

By:
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk

PUBLISHED:
EFFECTIVE DATE:
01-611100-5231-

tdh/ordinances/ 1.10 = ORD 20150623 (15-1104)



RESOLUTION APPROVING THE 2014
COMPLIANCE MAINTENANCE ANNUAL REPORT

WHEREAS, the State of Wisconsin has established Chapter NR 208, Compliance
Maintenance, and

WHEREAS, NR 208, Compliance Maintenance requires owners of publicly owned treatment
works to take necessary actions to avoid water quality degradation and prevent violations of WPDES
permit effluent limits; and

WHEREAS, Compliance Maintenance encourages actions which promote the owner’s
awareness and responsibility for wastewater treatment needs, maximize the useful life of sewerage
systems through improved operation and maintenance and initiate formal planning, design and
construction to prevent effluent violations; and

WHEREAS, the owners of publicly owned treatment works must submit a Compliance
Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR) to the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) on
or before June 30th of each year; and

WHEREAS, the CMAR describes the physical conditions and the performance of the
sewerage system during the previous calendar year and provides a treatment works owner with an
objective analysis to determine whether a more detailed evaluation of the sewerage system shall be
conducted; and

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit’s 2014 CMAR has been completed and the point system score
is 4.00 which indicates the Water Pollution Control Facility is fully compliant with all requirements of
NR 208; and

WHEREAS, NR states that, “For point totals equal to or less than 3.00, the owner may
evaluate and implement steps to address problems identified in the CMAR. The owner may initiate
longer range planning for new, upgraded or additional treatment facilities”;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Beloit declares
to the State of Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources that the following actions were taken by
the Beloit City Council:

1. Reviewed the 2014 CMAR, which is attached to the Resolution.
2. Set forth actions necessary to maintain effluent requirements contained in the WPDES

permit.

Adopted this 3rd day of August 2015.

____________________________
Charles M. Haynes
City Council President

Attest:

____________________
Lorena Rae Stottler
City Clerk

















































RESOLUTION APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BELOIT AND CHAMBERS IV, LLC

WHEREAS, Chambers IV, LLC is proposing to construct a multi-phase assisted living facility
that includes up to 100 units including a Residential Care Apartment Complex (RCAC) wing
and a Community Based Residential Facility (CBRF) wing with a shared administration,
commons, and kitchen area also known as, the Beloit Senior Living development project,
and.

WHEREAS, existing public utilities are located within the Beloit Senior Living
development site and must be relocated in order for the construction of this development to
proceed, and

WHEREAS, Chambers IV, LLC has drafted the attached Development Agreement, which
provides for the relocation of the existing public utilities across the property located at 2250
West Hart Road in accordance with approved plans and specifications in order to accommodate
the Beloit Senior Living development project at no cost to the City of Beloit; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the best interests of the City of Beloit for
the Beloit Senior Living development project to be constructed at 2250 West Hart Road.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the attached Development
Agreement is hereby approved and the City Manager of the City of Beloit be, and is hereby,
authorized to execute the same, to further execute any other documents to implement the
terms and conditions thereof, and to do all other things necessary in order to carry out the
purposes of this resolution.

Adopted this 3rd day of August, 2015.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Charles M. Haynes, Council President

ATTEST:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Proposed Development Agreement Between the City of Beloit and Chambers IV, LLC

Date: August 3, 2015

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
As required by prior land use approvals, Chambers IV, LLC has proposed the attached Development
Agreement related to the removal/abandonment/relocation of existing public utilities on the property located
at 2250 West Hart Road.

Key Issues:
 On January 5, 2015, the City Council authorized an amended Planned Unit Development (PUD) Master

Land Use Plan to allow the applicant to construct an assisted living facility on the subject property.

 As a condition of PUD approval, the applicant was required to commission a Certified Survey Map
(CSM) to subdivide the land and to create new utility easements for the existing public utilities which
cross the property and conflict with the proposed building. The required CSM has been prepared,
approved, and recorded. The existing public utilities follow the alignment of Tuck-A-Way Lane, which
was originally planned to connect Claremont Drive to W. Hart Road, with 4-unit residential buildings on
both sides of the street.

 As a condition of PUD approval, the applicant was also required to relocate the existing public utilities
into approved utility easements at no cost to the City of Beloit. The proposed Development Agreement
formalizes the developer’s agreement to relocate existing public utilities and to pay for said relocation.

 The applicant has already submitted detailed site and architectural plans, which are being reviewed by
Planning staff. The applicant has also submitted detailed utility relocation plans, which are being
reviewed by Engineering staff. The applicant has obtained an Early Start Permit and Erosion Control
Permit, which allow grading and site prep activities to commence while the plans are under review.

 The applicant has also submitted a separate request to vacate Tuck-A-Way Lane, which would abandon
a small stretch of unnecessary right-of-way and return the land to the applicant as private property.

 The proposed Development Agreement describes the utilities to be relocated, requires detailed plans
and specifications, and requires the use of qualified & insured contractors. The Development
Agreement requires the public utilities to be completed within one year, unless extended by the City
Engineer.

 The proposed Development Agreement was prepared by the applicant and reviewed by the City
Attorney, City Engineer, Community Development Director, and Planning Director.

 The attached Resolution authorizes the City Manager to enter into the proposed Development
Agreement.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the
City’s mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.



Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to
how it will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality
guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature –

N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:

 City Council consideration and action on the proposed Resolution

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

 The design and implementation of this project is at the developer’s cost.

Attachments: Resolution & Development Agreement



- 1 -

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (hereinafter the “Agreement”) is made by and
between Chambers IV, LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability company with its principal place of
business located at 2916 W. Hall Road, Whitewater, Wisconsin 53190 (hereinafter called
“Developer”), and the City of Beloit, a Wisconsin municipal corporation, with its principal place
of business located at 100 State Street, Beloit, Wisconsin 53511 (hereinafter called the “City”).

WHEREAS, the Developer has requested and the City has approved a Certified Survey
Map and Planned Unit Development (hereinafter the “PUD”) for Beloit Senior Living, LLC; and

WHEREAS, the City, as a condition of approving the CUP, has required Developer to:

A. Make and install improvements reasonably necessary for the development of
Beloit Senior Living, LLC (hereinafter called the “Project”) on the property
located at 2250 W. Hart Road in the City of Beloit, Wisconsin; and

B. Provide designated facilities without cost to the City as a condition of the PUD;
and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to enter into this Agreement in accordance with the state
statutes and City ordinances.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. Description of Public Improvements. As a condition of PUD approval, Developer
is required to provide the following public improvements and facilities. Those improvements
and facilities shall be constructed in accordance with Article 4 of this Agreement.

1.1. Installation of storm sewers and associated structures, and installation of
water main and associated structures, as necessary to re-route existing said utilities to
accommodate the Project. Said utilities shall be constructed within the easement
dedications as shown on the approved Certified Survey Map and as detailed in the
Engineering Plans and Specifications approved by the City Engineer.

1.2. Removal/abandonment of existing public facilities that conflict with the
proposed building footprint as detailed in the Engineering Plans and Specifications
approved by the City Engineer.

2. Definitions. The following terms, when used in this Agreement, shall have the
meanings set forth below:



- 2 -

2.1. Engineering Plans and Specifications means plans and specifications
prepared for use by the Developer in bidding and constructing public facilities and public
improvements required by the City as a condition of the PUD.

2.2. Project means the development of Beloit Senior Living, LLC, including
the construction of facilities and improvements required as a condition of the PUD.

2.3. Project Approvals means approvals that the Developer must obtain from
the City pursuant to the City’s ordinances and this Agreement.

3. Preconstruction Activities.

3.1. Engineering Plans and Specifications. The Developer shall prepare and
submit to the City the Engineering Plans and Specifications for all improvements and
facilities required as a condition by the PUD, including plans for removal/abandonment
of existing public facilities. If the parties agree, the City shall prepare all or part of the
Engineering Plans and Specifications and Developer shall pay the City for preparing the
same.

3.2. Contractors. The Developer shall engage qualified contractors for the
installation of all facilities and improvements. Before hiring contractors, the Developer
shall provide their names, addresses, and telephone numbers to the City Engineer for
approval or shall ensure that such contractors are listed as qualified by the City Engineer.
The Developer shall be solely responsible for all work performed by its contractors.
Prevailing wage rates will be paid if required.

3.3. Insurance. Before commencing construction of the public facilities and
public improvements, Developer shall provide the City with a certificate of insurance
coverage required by this Agreement. The certificate shall name the City as an additional
insured and shall provide that the policies of insurance shall not be cancelled or altered
without 30 days prior written notice to the City. The Developer shall, at Developer’s
expense, procure the following insurance policies from insurance companies licensed to
do business in the state of Wisconsin, in the amounts and coverages hereinafter set forth.
All insurance companies and required endorsements shall be approved by the City prior
to execution of the contract.

3.3.1. Workers Compensation Insurance. The Developer shall
provide a workers compensation policy with the statutory limits.

3.3.2. Commercial General Public Liability Insurance with the
following standard limits:

General Aggregate Limit (other than Products/
Completed Operations) $2,000,000

Products/Completed Operations/Aggregate Limit $2,000,000

Personal and Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000



- 3 -

Each Occurrence Limit $1,000,000

Medical Expense Limit/Any One Person $50,000

The Commercial General Liability policy will include protection for:

3.3.2.1. Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability
arising from premises, operations, products, and completed operations.

3.3.2.2. Contract Liability coverage for this Contract and
related contracts, including subcontracts.

3.3.2.3. Coverage for bodily injury or personal injury.

3.3.3. The Developer shall provide Commercial Automobile
Liability insurance covering all licensed vehicles and equipment owned by
the Developer and all drivers employed by the Developer in the amount of
$1,000,000. The policy shall cover:

3.3.3.1. All nonowned or hired vehicles.

3.3.3.2. Uninsured/Underinsured Motorist Liability
coverage at full policy limits.

3.3.3.3. Cross-suits.

3.3.3.4. Bodily injury and property damage for the
transportation of mobile equipment by a vehicle owned or operated
by the Contractor or rented or leased to the Contractor.

3.3.3.5. Automobile medical payment coverage of at
least $50,000.

3.3.3.6. Coverage for injuries caused by fellow
employees.

3.3.3.7. Contractual liability coverage for this
Contract and related contracts, including subcontracts.

3.3.4. Umbrella Coverage. Coverage shall protect Developer and
any subcontractor during the performance of work covered by this
Agreement with limits of $1,000,000 for bodily injury, personal injury,
and property damage on a combined basis with the stated underlying
limits of paragraphs 3.3.1 to 3.3.3 above.

4. Construction of Improvements.



- 4 -

4.1. Development of the Project. The parties recognize that Developer may
complete the project in phases. Developer agrees to complete each phase in accordance
with Section 4. of this Agreement.

4.2. Completion of Improvements. Developer shall complete construction of
all public facilities and improvements within 12 months from the date that the
Engineering Plans and Specifications are approved by the City Engineer, unless the City
Engineer extends the time for completion.

4.3. Approval of Facilities and Improvements. Upon completion by the
Developer and written approval by the City Engineer of all required public facilities and
improvements, Developer shall furnish the City with a digital “as built” set of plans
showing the location of all public facilities and improvements on the plat. Digital copies
shall be in AutoCAD format.

4.4. Warranty. Developer warrants that all public facilities and public
improvements required by this Agreement shall be constructed in accordance with
Engineering Plans and Specifications approved by the City Engineer. Developer also
warrants that all public facilities and public improvements required by this contract shall
be free from defects in workmanship and materials for one year from the date of
acceptance of the public facilities and public improvements by the City Engineer.
Developer shall correct any defects without cost to the City within 60 calendar days after
Developer receives written notice of the defects from the City Engineer.

5. Fees and Charges.

5.1. Fees, Conditions, and Dedications. Developer, as a condition of the PUD,
agrees to pay the City all fees and costs required by ordinances and by this Agreement.
Such fees and costs include, but are not limited to:

5.1.1. Building permits;

5.1.2. Application fees;

5.1.3. Professional fees for review and approval of preliminary
plats, final plats, engineering plans and specifications, land dedications;

5.1.4. Inspection fees;

5.1.5. Impact fees, if any; and

5.1.6. Legal fees, if any.

Inspection costs will be billed at the rate of $80 per hour for straight time and $120 per
hour for overtime, if City staff conducts inspections. The City will attempt to complete
City staff inspections during regular work hours. In the event that the City must contract
with a qualified third party to complete inspections, those inspection costs will be billed
at the rate charged to the City for such inspections.



- 5 -

6. Implementation of this Agreement.

6.1. Compliance with Regulations. Developer agrees to comply with all local,
state, and federal laws and regulations in effect during the development of the Project.

6.2. Processing of Permits. City agrees to promptly process Developer’s
applications for permits and approvals provided such applications are properly completed
and accompanied by the appropriate fees.

6.3. Indemnification. Developer shall indemnify and hold the City, its officers,
employees, and agents harmless from any liability for claims arising out of any of the acts
or omissions of Developer, its officers, directors, employees, or agents.

6.4. Transfer of Property. The covenants contained in this Agreement shall run
with the land and shall be binding upon the Developer and the Developer’s successors
and assigns.

6.5. Validity of Agreement. The parties agree that all of the provisions of this
Agreement are valid and binding. If any third party should challenge the validity of any
provision of this Agreement, the City and the Developer shall cooperate in defending the
validity of this Agreement.

6.6. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is determined, by a court
of competent jurisdiction, to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this
Agreement shall continue in full force and effect.

6.7. Time is of the Essence/Liquidated Damages. The parties agree that time is
of the essence with regard to all deadlines set forth in this Agreement. If Developer fails
to complete construction of the public improvements or public facilities required by this
Agreement, Developer shall pay the City, as liquidated damages, the sum of $100 per day
for each and every day’s delay. The Developer shall not be responsible for liquidated
damages if delay is caused by civil disorder, strike, fire, flood, or other cause not within
the control of Developer, and which, by the exercise of reasonable diligence, the
Developer is unable to prevent, whether one of the causes enumerated herein. In such
case, the time for performance shall be extended by the period of delay occasioned by
any such cause.

6.8. Notices. All notices required by this Agreement shall be in writing and
mailed, faxed, electronically transmitted, or personally delivered:

To the City of Beloit as follows: Lori S. Curtis Luther, City Manager
City of Beloit
100 State Street
Beloit, WI 53511
Fax: (608) 364-6716

With copy to: Elizabeth A. Krueger, City Attorney
100 State Street



- 6 -

Beloit, WI 53511
Fax: (608) 364-6718

To Chambers IV, LLC: Scott F. Shadel
Managing Partner
2916 N. Hall Road
Whitewater, WI 53190

6.9. Amendments. No provision of this Agreement may be amended without
the written consent of both parties. Neither party shall be deemed to have waived any
default in performance by the other party unless such waiver is reduced to writing and
signed by an authorized representative of the party waiving such default.

6.10. Default and Remedies. In the event that either party is in default in the
performance of its obligations under this Agreement, the other party shall give written
notice of such default to the other party. The defaulting party shall be given 30 days
within which to cure the default. If the defaulting party fails to cure the default within the
time provided, the other party may exercise any remedy available at law or equity. Such
remedies include, but are not limited to, liquidated damages, damages for breach of
contract, forfeiture action for violation of any applicable City ordinance, injunctive relief,
or other such remedy.

6.11. Recording. This document may be recorded by either party.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by
their respective authorized officers or agents on the date written below.

OWNER:
CHAMBERS IV, LLC

By:
Scott F. Shadel, Managing Partner

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
) ss.

COUNTY OF ROCK )

Personally came before me this day of , 2015, the above-named
Scott F. Shadel, Managing Partner of Chambers IV, LLC, to me known to be the person who
executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same.

Notary Public, Rock County, Wisconsin
My commission is permanent
Or expires:



- 7 -

CITY OF BELOIT, WISCONSIN

By:
Lori S. Curtis Luther, City Manager

By:_________________________________
Eric R. Miller, Finance Director

Attest:

By:_________________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk

Approved as to Form:

By:_________________________________
Elizabeth A. Krueger, City Attorney

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
) ss.

COUNTY OF ROCK )

Personally came before me this day of , 2015, the above-named Lori
S. Curtis Luther, Eric R. Miller, and Lorena Rae Stottler of the City of Beloit, to me known to be
the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same.

Notary Public, Rock County, Wisconsin
My commission is permanent
Or expires:

This document prepared by:
Attorney Scott F. Shadel
2916 N. Hall Road
Whitewater, WI 53190
Dev Agr 060915-543702



- 8 -

EXHIBIT A
Legal Description

Lot 1 of a Certified Survey Map as recorded in Volume 36 on Pages 478-481 of the Certified
Survey Maps of Rock County as Document No. 2028432, located in the City of Beloit, County
of Rock, State of Wisconsin. Said parcel contains 6.52 acres.



- 9 -

EXHIBIT B
Request for Acceptance of Land Dedication,

Public Facilities, and Improvements

Developer, Chambers IV, LLC, hereby requests that the City of Beloit accept dedication
of the following land and the following public facilities and improvements:

Attached hereto is an “as built” set of plans and AutoCAD files of all public facilities and
improvements which the City is being requested to accept.

Developer warrants that all public improvements and public facilities that the City is
being asked to accept are free from defects in workmanship and materials.

CHAMBERS IV, LLC

By:
Scott F. Shadel, Managing Member

ACCEPTANCE OF LAND DEDICATION
AND PUBLIC FACILITIES AND IMPROVEMENTS

The City of Beloit hereby accepts the land dedication, public facilities, and improvements
described above.

CITY OF BELOIT, WISCONSIN

By:
Mike Flesch, City Engineer


	Monday, August 3, 2015
	1.	CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	2.	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	3.	SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS
	a.	Proclamation declaring August 4, 2015 as National Night Out (Zibolski)

	4.	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	a.	Resolution authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow a single-family attached dwelling in C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 911 East Grand Avenue (Christensen)  Plan Commission recommendation for approval 6-0
	b.	Resolution authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow the sale of alcoholic beverages in C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 901 Bayliss Avenue (DBA Dave’s Bait and Tackle)  (Christensen)  Plan Commission recommendation for approval 6-0
	c.	Resolution authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor seating area and outdoor sales, possession, & consumption of alcohol in the CBD-1, Central Business District – Core, for the property located at 430 E. Grand Avenue (DBA Zen Sushi & Grill) (Christensen) Plan Commission recommendation for approval 6-0

	5.	CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
	6.	CONSENT AGENDA
	a. Approval of the Minutes of the regular meeting of July 20, 2015 (Stottler)
	b.	Application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow outdoor seating area and outdoor sales, possession, & consumption of alcohol in a PUD, Planned Unit Development District for property located at 2900 Milwaukee Road  (DBA Noodles and Company) (Christensen)  Refer to Plan Commission
	c.	Application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification of the property located at 2460 Milwaukee Road from C-1, Office District  and M-2, General Manufacturing District to PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District  (Christensen)  Refer to Plan Commission

	7.	 ORDINANCES
	a.	Proposed Ordinance to amend Sections 30.17(1)(b)2, (b)3, (b)6 and (b)7a of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit pertaining to Electronically Variable-Message Signs (Christensen) 2nd reading
	b.	Proposed Ordinance to Repeal and Recreate Section 1.10 of the Code of General Ordinances for the City of Beloit pertaining to Emergency Management  (Liggett)  2nd reading

	8.	APPOINTMENTS – none
	9.	COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS
	10.	CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION - none
	11.	REPORTS FROM BOARDS AND CITY OFFICERS
	a.	Resolution approving the 2014 Wastewater Utility Wisconsin DNR Compliance Maintenance Annual Report  (Mathos)
	b.	Resolution approving and authorizing City Manager to enter into a Development Agreement with Chambers IV, LLC regarding relocation of public utilities on the property located at 2250 W. Hart  (Christensen)

	12.	ADJOURNMENT

